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Description

CONDITION
Excellent £ Good

(Check On*) 

Q Foir D Deterioroted Q Rw»n« D Unexposed

(Check One) 

Altered ® Unaltered

(Check One) 

Moved QB Originol Site

Little is known of the original Atsion and forge and village 
started by Charles Bead in 1768* All traces of these structures 
await archaeological work. Foundations remain ef the grist mill, 
barn and several house sites. Neither the forge or furnace have been 
exactly located.

Most of the village that remains today is from the Richards 
(1808-181*1) and Patterson (1863-1875) eras of the town. The Richards 
mansion and sojbre have been restored. A cotton factory houses and 
church from tne Patterson era are in deteriating condition.

The entire village sits on unconsolidated sands in a poor drainage 
area typical of the Pine Barrens in which it is located* The Atsion 
River flows through the center of the village*

The mansion built in 1826 has been restored externally* It is an 
excellent example of Greek Revival architecture* There are two porches 
with cast iron water pipe as columns, a large porch across the south
side of the house and a small porch to the north* The entire house is

The interior consists of four rooms on the first floor, and a 
T-shaped hallway with stairs that lead to a large-windowed landing. 
The second floor has six bedrooms. The third floor was also divided in­ 
to six rooms* There are four fireplaces on both the first and second 
floor and a kitchen fireplace in the basement.

The village is now bi-seeted by State Highway # 206

(see continuation sheet \)^ ' ;/•

m 
rn

70

C 

0

H



8. Statement J of,..Sijniific«
PERIOD (Check One or More a» Appropriate)

13 Pre-Columbian | Q 16th Century 

D1 5th Century D 17th Century

Q 20th Century

1$63( cotton) ^885(real estate)gf Applicable and *»ownj ^ 1?66 -
AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Check One or More aa Appropriate)

Abor iginal
C3 Prehistoric

O Historic 

[~j Agriculture 

[5 Architecture 

D Art 

[~~l Commerce 

t~l Communications 

[3 Conservation

(~1 Education 

[~l Engineering

. QD Jm'?**.1l*y
T~f Invention 

F~l Landscape

Architecture 
Q Literature 

fj Military 

Music

[ I Religion/Phi. 

_ - _ - _._._ ——.Josophy,, „ 
n Science 

[~1 Sculpture 

I | Social/Human­ 

itarian 

[~1 Theater 

I I Transportation

,Q Urban Planning 

D Other (Specify)

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Atsion Village is significant as a remnant of an early industrial 
eommunity. This bog iron community lasted from 1768 until 181*1, and was 
revitalized with a cotton factory in 1863 and a real estate development 
called Raleigh in 188$. Neither the cotton factory nor development were 
sucessful.

The mansion (described in appearance) and the store are arehitectually 
significant. The store is also rough casted with scoring to look like 
dressed stone. The first floor included an office counter sparse with 
shelves and a large open area. Both the basement and second floor were 
used for storage space. A small room located to the right rear of the 
building was also used for storage.

These two buildings should have Historic American Buildings Survey 
citation•

The mansion and store are fine examples of Greek Revival architecture 
and among the few remaining in Soath Jersey. The rough cast plaster is 
a unique effect to imitate stonework.

(see continuation sheet)
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7. Description (cont.)

The store is rough coated with plaster in a manner similiar to the 
mansion. The store has a belfry that gives it the appearance of a church. 
The belfry contained the bell used to call the employees to work.

The mill is an L-shaped 3^ story Jersey sandstone and timber 
building. It is vacant and in a deteriorating condition. No panes of 
glass are left in any of the windows. Its approximate size is 80' X2i|», 
attached to a 60' X £0' section. The third level was added by Raleigh 
when he converted the mill to paper production.

The church is 1 story white clapboard structure, with a twentieth 
century vestibule. The church is altered. It has 3 bays on the long 
side of the building with 6/6 sash and louvered shutters.

The school house was bu It in 1921. It is 1 story, frame and 
clapboard construction. The entrance is on the ftable end. The building 
is no longer used as a school.

There are three workers homes remaining. One of these was built 
around i860 of frame and clapboard construction. It is 2% stories, 
with a gable roof that has a slight return. There is a raised stone 
foundation with two interior chimnies. The clapboard is unpainted. 
Another worker's house, probably built during the iron ore era at Atsion, 
a -ppears as a log caoin today. The logs are not original. It is a two 
story building with an added center dormer. The windows on the first 
floor are 6/6. sash, the second are UA. There is a center front entrance 
with a bay on each side. The chimney is inte ior. The caretaker's house, 
built c. 1030, is white clapboard, 2% stories. It is highly altered and 
retains little of its original work.

2. Location (cont.)

The Atsion Village District is continuous with the latitude and longi­ 
tude lines. This was done to include house sites (l) alo$g the north side 
of the lake, a former railroad station (2) to the east of the town and a 
cemetery (3) along the south lake shore.

6PO 921-724
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8. significance (cont.)

Atsion had four booms or revivals at different periods 
of history. The name itself comes from the Indian term for cedar 
color, which is the tone the stream running through the area had. 
The dam and the mill were constructed by a man named Estell 
around 1765. Charles Read purchased the area around the same 
time. He then built the forge. Read had set out to be the 
greatest iron master in New Jersey. He owned Etna, Tauton, Atsion 
and Basto by 1768. However, poor financial planning caused him 
to sell 449/1000 interest in Atsion. His controlling shares 
were sold in 1773.

Laurence Salter and David Ogden took control at this time. 
Later Ogden sold his shares to two other men and with Salter, 
these three men formed Atsion Company. In 1774 the furnace was 
built, making Atsion independent of Batsto. During the Revolu­ 
tionary War, Atsion supplied iron to the Pennsylvania Troops. 
Business boomed and three saw mills and a grist mill were added.

By 1804 hard times had hit the village, and the works were 
sold to Jacob Downing. He purchased a blast furnace, an air 
furnace, a forge, a sawmill, two grist mills, ore beds, and 
20,000 acres. Downing f s era produced pots, stoves, kettles, and 
firebacks.

Again, business failed and the bank sold the property to 
Samuel Richards, the son of the owner of Batsto, in 1822. He 
reopened and rebuilt the works. They sold products in the 
Philadelphia and Trenton area. Business expanded to merchants in 
the New York area and a schooner was built to run down the river 
with products. The mansion and the store were built in this boom 
era. At this time the company employed 100 men and peaked to 
around 600 people during busy seasons.

Samuel Richards died in 1842 at the peak of Atsion f s success. 
He left half of the estate to his daughter and half to his son. 
His daughter f s husband, W. W. Fleming, took over the business. 
When the iron business fell off, he converted the works into paper 
producition and built a paper mill. In 1854, the business failed 
again and Fleming fled the country, assigning his assets to his 
creditors. The area then went through various owners until' 1862 
when Col. William Patterson bought the area and renamed it

GPO 921-724
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Fruitland. He planned a real estate project, selling lots in 
the area. By 1871, the area was sold once more and was converted 
to a cotton mill. This was a profitable venture and the town 
expanded. A school and shops were built. When this owner, 
Raleigh, died his heir formed a land improvement company. This 
second land boom failed as the first had.

In 1892, Jjaaenh_JViiarton acquired the property and used it 
as a storage area for products from Batsto.

What remains of the various companies formed in Atsion is 
the mill, the mansion, the store, a church and two homes. 
Foundations of other workers' houses and a grist mill and barn 
still remain. New discoveries may_Jiave revealed the furnace, 
but further archeological work must be done before this is 
certain. There is no other development on the land beyond some 
1920 structures like the school.
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